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1 PROCEEDINGS
2

(PUBLIC SESSION)
3

4 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Goodmorning.
5 Pleasebe seated.
6 Counselfor SoundExchangeandeveryone,
7 we haveadmittedsomepaperdocumentssubjectto
8 identificationon the disks in native format, the
9 wholeof the transactionin documents.I think

10 thoseare86 and87, thosedisks?
11 MS. WHITTLE: 80 and87.
12 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: 80 and87. My
13 impression,andyou cancorrectme if it's the
14 wrongnnpression„myimpressionis thatthosedisks
15 containa lot ofmaterial,not all ofwhich will be
16 partof anadmittedexhibit; is thatcorrect?
17 MR. POMERANTZ: Ms. Ehler is not here,
18 so I'l do my best. I believeeverythingin there
19 is to be admitted. It is — thesearevarious
20 documentsthatarerelatedto the agreementsthat
21 are— thathavebeendiscussed,andI believe
22 they'ebeenreviewedby all of thepartieshere,
23 anda narrowersubsetwas includedon the disks
24 thathadbeensubmitted. I canconfirm thatwith
25 Ms. EhlerwhenI speaktoher,but I believe
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1 everythingon thosediskswassupposedto be
2 submitted.
3 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Okay. Soyou
4 havesubmittedreplacementdisksatthispoint that
5 areedited?
6 MR. POMERANTZ: Correct.
7 CHIEF JUDGEBARhKTT: That'sall we
8 neededto know.
9 MR. POMERANTZ: Correct.

10 CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: We didn'thaveto
11 wantto weighthroughabunchofbits andbitesand
12 notknowwhattheywere.
13 MR. POMERANTZ: I think earlierthis
14 week„wehandedsomedisksto Ms. Whittle, andit
15 is thosedisk thatarethereplacementdisks.
16 CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Right. Thank
17 you.
18 Mr. Malone.
19 MR. MALONE: Goodmorning.
20 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Goodmorning.
21 MR. MALONE: I call CaptainKass.
22 CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: All right.
23 MR. MALONE: Thewitnessbook,Your
24 Honor, is theonethatI distributedwith Mr.
25 PapishwhenhewashereandI think thereare
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Q. All right.
CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: I'm sorry,Mr.

Kass,just for the record,canyouspellyour last
name,please.

THE WITNESS: Yes. Kilo AlphaSierra
Sierra.

CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Thankyou.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. I havejusthandedyou astatement
which is markedby theCourtasIBS Exhibit 9000.
Wouldyou look at thatandidentify it, please.

A. Yes. It's my testimony— mywritten
testimonyonbehalfof theIntercollegiate
BroadcastingSystem.

Q. Onthe lastpage,is thatyour
signature?

A. Yes.

Q. And is the— thestatementsof fact in
thewrittentestimonycurrentlytrueandcorrect?

A. Yes.

Q. Whatis your relationshipto the
IntercollegiateBroadcastingSystem?

A. I'm the currentchiefexecutive
officer, volunteerchiefexecutiveofficer and
treasurer.

6261
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1 enoughcopiesthatwe canprovideduplicates.
2 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Okay. Good.
3 Thankyou. I havealreadytakenmine into the
4 otherspace.
5 MR. MALONE: Val, thebenchneeds
6 copies.
7 CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: That'sokay. I
8 justoffloadedabunchofthings.
9 I'm sorry,sir, couldyoupleasestaid

10 andraiseyour righthand.
11 FREDERICKJ. KASS, JR.,
12 beingfirst duly sworn,to tell thetruth, the
13 wholetruth andnothingbut thetruth, testifiedas
14 follows:
15 DIRECTEXAMNATION BY COUNSELFOR

INTERCOLLEGIATE
16 BROADCASTINGSYSTEMAND HARVARD

RADIO
17 BY MR. MALONE:
18 Q. Will you stateyournamefor the
19 record,please.
20 A. FrederickJ. Kass,Jr.
21 Q. And whereis your residence?
22 A. NewWindsor,NewYork.
23 Q. Which is justsouthofNewburgh?
24 A. JustnorthofU.S.Military Academyat

6262

1 Q. And doesthe Intercollegiate
2 BroadcastingSystemhaveanyemployees?
3 A. No oneis paid. We areall volunteers.
4 Q. And whatwasyour first association
5 with collegeradio?
6 A. WhenI was17, a freshmanatLehigh
7 University, 1960,I wasmanageroftheradio
8 station,becameinterestedin IBS, andhave
9 basicallybeenwith themeversince.

10 Q. Andwouldyoubriefly canvasyour
11 military career?
12 A. I retirednavycaptain,30 yearsof
13 service,multiple combattours in Vietnamand
14 DesertStorm.Iguessthat's-
15 Q. All right.
16 A. I servedfrom — I wascommissionedin
17 1964andI retiredin 1996.
18 Q. And do youhavea relationshipwith a
19 military entity oftheNewYork State?
20 A. I do. GovernorMario Cuomo,whenI
21 retiredfiom activefederalduty appointedmeas
22 thecommanderoftheNewYork StateNavalMilitia,
23 which is the stateduty, theNavy, Marine Corpsand
24 CoastGuard.
25 Q. What is thecompositionofthe
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IntercollegiateBroadcastSystem?
A. Approximately800high school.

communitycollege„statecollegeanduniversities,
thevastmajority ofwhich arepublicentitiesof
our 50 states.

Q. And aretheseall homogenousor are
therevarioustypesofstudentstationmembers'?

A. Theyaredramaticallydifferentfrom
thesmallest,whichwould bethehigh school
stationsandthecommunitycollegestations. They
haveno dormitories. Theyarenot a residential
activity, so theyhavevery limited broadcasting
activitiesto thestatecollegesandthenthemajor
universitieswhichmighthave40 or 50,000
students.Essentiallyall ofthestudents,because
thesearestudentradio stations,literally exist
for theprogressofscienceandmusicalarts. They
aretrying to build skill setsup, andtheyusethe
radiostationas— muchlike asciencelab, a
physicslab or a chemlab. It is acommunications
room.

Q. To whatextentarethestudentspaid?
A. Theyareall volunteer.

CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Excuseme. Mr.
Kass,you indicatedthatavastmajority ofthe
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respectto IBS?
A. Absolutely. IBS is basically75 years

ofbestmanagementpracticesandwhathaveyou.
Thewaywe communicatethosepracticesto our
membersarecoastto coastconferencesin the fall,
whichareheldat IBS membercollegesand
universities. We haveamajorconferencein New
York City in March. In additionto that, thebest
way to leamis to havefun andbe incentivized,so

wehaveanextensiverewardsprograinandthat—
thereis over4,000entriesinto thatandthe
studentsareveryanxiousto win thoseawards.

Q. By entires,youmeanprograms?
A. Yes. Bestsportsprogramatthe

UniversityofConnecticutfor women'sbasketbalL

Q. And avolunteermemberofthestaff
listensto all 4,000ofthese?

A. We haveabout200volunteersandthe
judgestendto beradioprofessionalsthatalso
speakatourconference.We haveroughly200
governmentandradioprofessionalsandon occasion,
SoundExchangepeople.

Q. Goingbackto theclassifications,if
youwill, or typesofstations,to whatextentdo

theydiffer in termsofthenumberofhoursof
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membersarepublicentities. Do youhavea
breakdownofpercentageor numbersonhowmanyare
public andhowmanyareprivate?

THE WITNESS: It is roughly 80 percent
publicand 15 percentprivate,to theextentthat
HarvardUniversityis — orHarvardCollegeis

private,andthenaboutfive percentare
community-based,thatnecessarily— theyarenot
necessarilyfinancedby anentityofthestate.
Theyarefinancedby the community.

CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Thankyou.
THE WITNESS: You'ewelcome.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And aresomeof theseactions
extracurricularactivities?

A. Yes,mostofthemare.

Q. And is thereaproblemwith the
stationspayingmoneyto SoundExchange,thosethat
arestateinstitutions?

A. Yes,manyofthe50 stateshavea rule
thatthe statetaxpayermoneycannotbepaid for
lobbyingor a lobbyinggroupandSoundExchangeuses
someoftheirmoneyfor lobbying.

Q. Wouldyouelaborate,please,on the
activitiesthatmemberstationsparticipatein with

1 operationperchannel?
2 A. Thesmallerstations,thatwould be the
3 highschoolstationsandthe communitycollege
4 stationsareon theair, so to speak,roughlythree
5 hoursaday,five daysaweek,15 hoursaweek,and
6 theyhaveabouta39-weekyearwith vacationsand
7 springbreak,etcetera,so theyareputting it in
8 termsofATH or averagetuninghours,theyareon
9 theair about1,755hoursayear.

10 MR. CHOUDHURY: Your Honor,this is
11 beyondthe scope. Thereareno numbersofATH or
12 estimatesin his testimony.
13 MR. MALONE: Well, if Your Honor
14 please,he is describingthemembershipcomposition
15 of IBS andashehaslaid the foundationby saying
16 therearedifFerenttypes,his testimonyin total
17 will describe,for thebench,thetypesofstations
18 thataremembersof IBS. This is howthe800
19 membersofhis testimonyrefersto breakdown.
20 CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Sustained.
21 JUDGEFEDER: Mr. Malone,canyoupull
22 themicrophonea little closerto you.
23 MR. MALONE: I'm sorry.
24 BY MR. MALONE:
25 Q. I amgoingto handyou a document

(866)448 - DEPO www.CapitalReportingCompany.corn  2015



CapitalReportingCompany
Day 23 In Re: Determinationof RoyaltyRates(Public) 02-28-2015

6267 6269

1

2
3

4
5

6

7
8

9

10

ll
12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
21

22
23

24
25

markedIBS ExhibitNo. 9001,which in thewitness
binderis Tab4, andwould you identify that,
please.

A. Yes,this is IBS commentson
SoundExchangeandCPIjoint rateproposal.

Q. And again,going to the lastpage,is
thatyoursignature?

A. Yes, it is.

MR. CHOUDHURY: Your Honor,weobject
to questionsandtheadmissionofthis exhibit. We
understandthesecommentsarepartof the overall
recordin theproceeding,but thereis nothingin
thetestimonyaboutthis document.

MR. MALONE: If Your Honorplease,the
sequenceofeventshereis thatCBI joined in a
motionto adoptcertainregulationsthatthey
agreeduponwith SoundExchange.Thatwasfiled,
andwe opposedthat, andin thecommentswe filed,
youwill notethatthe — on informationand
belief,we indicatedthatthe— thereweresome
problemswith thebonafidesoftheagreement
becauseofsomesidepayments.

SoundExchange— I'm sorry,CBI filed
written testimony. We filed interrogatoriesand
documentproductionrequestswhichweredenied,and
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testimony,we don'tthink thereis anythingthat
addressesthathere.

CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Mr. Malone,the
proposedsettlementbetweenSoundExchangeandCBI
waspublished,asyou arewell aware. We did
receivecommentson that. Thosecommentsarepart
oftheoverallrecord. Theyrelatesolelyto the
CBI settlementandour — while that is not
unrelatedto whatwe aredoinghere,our
considerationofthosecommentswill bedonein the
contextof thatsettlement.

MR. MALONE: Well, if Your Honor
please,that's— howeverthebenchwantsto deal
with that is fine. I do think thatthereare
seriousallegationswhich areunrebuttedon paper
or in live testimony,andwewill standon the
recordasyouhaveit.

CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Okay. Thankyou.
MR. MALONE: I think thatconcludesmy

questions,Mr. Kass.
JUDGEFEDER: Mr. Malone,did you

intendto offer thewrittentestimony?
MR. MALONE: I'm sorry,YourHonor, I

neglectedto do that. Thankyou.
We ofFerExhibit 9000.

6268 6270

1 so SoundExchange— or I'm sorry,CBI did notoffer
2 awitnessin thisproceedingso that is certainly
3 notsupportedby testimony,andI think our
4 positionwould be thattheproposalis — youknow,
5 what'ssaucefor thegooseis saucefor thegander.
6 And if our oppositionis goingto be
7 not admitted,thenwe don'tthink thatthereis any
8 evidencein therecordthatsupportstheagreement
9 betweenSoundExchangeandCBI, andso I think the

10 consequencesofexcludingour oppositionwouldalso
11 havetheeffectofexcludinganyaffirmative
12 showingby CBI, andwithout that, I don'tthink
13 thereis anyrecordsupportfor the CBI proposal.
14 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Mr. Choudhury?
15 MR. MALONE: Briefly, we don'tthink
16 this situationis anydifferentthanthesituation
17 with Mr. Papish,andin fact, in this situation,
18 therewascertainlyopportunityto file rebuttal
19 testimonyin this proceedingandthatwasnot filed
20 by IBS in this proceeding,andofcourse,this
21 documentis partof the recordwith all of the
22 commentsthatwerefiled aboutthesettlementwhich
23 werenotjust from IBS butwith respectto the fact
24 recordandthetestimonyof this witnesswhich
25 shouldbe restrictedto his writtendirect

1 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Is Exhibit 9004
2 his testimony?
3 MS. WHITTLE: 9000 is thewritten
4 testimonyofMr. Kass.
5 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: 9000,oh, I
6 thoughtit was9004.
7 MR. MALONE: No, wearenotthat
8 prolific.
9 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Any objectionto

10 Exhibit 9000?
11 MR. CHOUDHURY: No objection.
12 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Exhibit 9000 is
13 admitted. Thankyou, Mr. Malone.
14 EBS ExhibitNo. 9000wasadmittedinto
15 evidence.)
16 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Mr. Kass,you
17 mighthavesomemorequestionsto answer,sowe'e
18 notgoing to letyou ofFthehookthateasy.
19 CROSS-E3VdvDNATIONBY COUNSELFOR

SOUNDEXCHANGE
20 BYMR.CHOUDHURY:
21 Q. I will letyouoffthehookpretty
22 easy. Thankyou for yourpatiencein waitingwith
23 us for yourtestimony.
24 As youknow,my nameis Anjan Choudhury
25 andI representSoundExchange.Justa coupleof
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questions.
Therearemembersof IBS who don'

Webcast,correct?
A. Yes.

Q. And do youknowwhatpercentageofyour
totalmembershipengagingin Webcasting?

A. No.
Q. Do you knowhowmany— well, let me

askyou: You know, in your testimony,you referred
to thestatelaws.

Do you recallwhat—

A. Yes.

Q. Canyou identify anexampleofoneof
thosestatelaws?

A. By chapterandverse?I mean,NewYork
State,for instance.which I amacitizenof, hasa
statute— actuallynumerousstatuteswhichsay
thatNewYork Statetaxpayermoneymaynotbeused
for — to paya lobbyistor lobbyingorganizations.

Q. And whatyoumeanby that, is that
thoselawsmeanthatyou can'tdonate,for example,
to a lobbyingorganization,correct?

A. No. It meansthatyou can'tusestate
taxpayermoneyto payanorganizationthat lobbies.

Q, Wouldyou agreethatstatetaxpayer

1 havingbeenpreviouslyduly sworn,to tell the
2 truth, thewholetruth andnothingbut the truth,
3 testifiedasfollows:
4 MR. POMERANTZ: Justsoeverybodyhas
5 whattheyshouldhave,thereshouldbe two binders,
6 the first ofwhich I believeis justhis directand
7 rebuttaltestimonywith exhibits,andthesecondis
8 someotherdocumentswemayreferto during the
9 courseof theexamination. I believeinsidethe

10 pocketpartofthe— maybethe first binderwill
11 be somedemonstrativeslidesthatwe will begoing
12 through.
13 DIRECTEXAMNATION BY COUNSELFOR

SOUNDEXCEDWGE
14 BY MR. POMERANTZ:
15 Q. Goodmorning,ProfessorRubinfeld.
16 A. Goodmorning.
17 Q. I remindyou thatyou arestill under
18 oath.

19 A. I am.
20 Q. Sowe areheretodayto discussyour
21 written rebuttaltestimonyand,in particular,
22 we'egoingto addressjusta fewof thetopics
23 thatyou raisedthere.
24 Let's look at the first slide. If you
25 could tell thejudgeswhattopicswewill be

6272 6274

1 organizations,like IBS members,theypay
2 electricitybills, correct?
3 A. Typically, no. Theyareprovided&ee
4 by theuniversity.
5 Q. So it's your testimonythatunderyour
6 understandingof the laws,thatstateorganizations
7 cannotpayanybills for anyorganizationthathas
8 a lobbyingcomponentto it?
9 A. Correct.

10 Q. And you arenot a lawyer,correct?
11 A. Absolutelynot.
12 MR. CHOUDHURY: Thankyou. Thatis
13 all.

14 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Any further
15 questionsfrom anyone?
16 Thankyouvery much,Mr. Kass.
17 THE WITNESS: Thankyou, Your Honor.
18 (Witnessexcused.)
19 MR. POMERAÃK: Your Honor,
20 SoundExchangecallsProfessorDanielRubinfeldas
21 ournextwitness.
22 CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: Professor
23 Rubinfeld,you remainunderoath,soyou maybe
24 seated.
25 DANIEL L. RUBINFELD,

1 addressingthis morning.
2 A. Sure. I will becommentingonsome
3 aspectsofthe iHeart-Warnerdealasapossible
4 benchmark,andthenI'l alsotalk aboutthe
5 Pandora-Merlindeal,andthenI wantto makea few
6 responsesto someofthecritiquesofthe
7 interactivityadjustmentthatI usedto go &om the
8 interactiveservicesto getabenchmarkwith
9 respectto noninteractives.

10 Q. Right.
11 MR. POMWANTZ: So,Your Honor, the
12 first topic, the iHeart-Warnertopic,will be
13 confidential. Onesmallportionofthe
14 Pandora-Merlinwill alsobeconfidential. Therest
15 will beopen.
16 So I think if we canstartwith it
17 closedandthenwe'l bring everybodyback.
18 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Thankyou.
19 Anyone in the courtroomwhohasnotsignedthe
20 nondisclosurecertificate,pleasewait outside.
21 (THIS ENDS PUBLIC SESSION)
22 (RESTRICTEDSESSIONBOUND

SEPARATELY)
23

24
25
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the rateperiod. Eveiything fits veiy closelyto

thePureplaysettlementitself.

Q. And then if we could go to the next
slide, Slide 14.

Couldyou explainto thejudgesyour
views asto whetherthePandora-Merlindeal is

representativeas— for purposesofbenchmark
considerations?

A. Sure. As I think I expressedin my
original testimony,I would bevery concerned
myselfwithout relying on a singleagreementin
orderto reacha decisionaboutwhat the

appropriateratesettingoughtto be, andthat is
particularlytiue becausethe agreementwasone
thatwasaffectedby the shadow.

This particularagreementwith Merlin
involves— doesnot involve anyofthe three
majorsandMerlin is a significantplayer,but they
havelessthan five percentof all theperformances
on Pandora.Soyou haveto be carefulaboutwhat
inferencesyou draw fi om thatsizesample,if you
will. And so thereis no agreement.If therewere
otheragreementsthatPandorahadwith themajors,
thatwould addmoreinformation. It would still
suffer fiom the shadowproblem,but at least
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(THIS BEG1NSPUBLIC SESSION)
BY MR. POMERANTZ:

Q. Now, ProfessorRubinfeld, if we could
turn backto Slide 12.

Is this a summaryof the pointsyou
want to addresstodayrelatingto Pandora-Merlin?

A. Yes.

Q. Let'sgo to the first point, which I

think is describedon tab — on Slide 13.

Couldyoujustwalk thejudgesthrough
your views aboutthe effectsof the shadowof the
statutorylicenseon thePandora-Merlindeal?

A. Yes. My view is that this deal, like
the iHeartdeal is — wasaffectedby theshadowof
the statutorylicense. Thereis justno v ay to
avoid that.

In this particularcase,you seethe
effectof the shadowbecausethe headlinerateon
the dealwasessentiallya mirror of thePureplay
rates,andso everyoneknewwhenthe dealwasbeing
negotiatedthatPandorahadthe option to take-
to acceptthePureplayratesandenterinto this
deal,but it is veiy hard for me to seewhy the
shadowwouldn'thavea big effecton the
negotiations,andthe dealendson the lastdayof
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providemoreinformationso I wouldjustbevery
neivousaboutdrawingany simpleconclusionjust
from theMerlin agreement.

JUDGESTRICKLER: Questionfor you,
ProfessorRubinfeld: I justwantto geta senseof
howmanycontractsyou lookedat, separateand
apartfrom marketshare,which is adifferent
issue,versusthe numberof contractsthatwere
lookedat by the services,how manycontractpairs
did you look at to reachyour estimateof — for
proposedrates?

THE WITNESS: Well, I lookedat over 80
— on the interactiveside,over80 contracts,60
ofwhichhaddataon play ratesthat I usedin the
calculations,so the actualcalculationshadabout
60 contracts.

JUDGESTRICKLER: So 60, and
iHeart-Warner,if we'ejustkeepingscore— and
again,in this regardandno otherway,just so I
geta senseof this aspectof it, they reliedon-
theyhave28 agreementsthattheyhadproposed.I
understandyou mayhavecriticismsof a numberof
them,but I believetheyhave28; is that right?

THE WITNESS: Therearea lot of-
yeah,I think thereare27 agreementswith indies,
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that'scorrect.
JUDGESTRICKLER: Plusthe

iHeart-Warnermakes28.
THE WITNESS: Right.
JUDGESTRICKLER: And thenwe havethe

Pandora-Merlinagreement.Wouldyou considerthe
Pandora-Merlinagreementoneseparateagreementor
doesit constitute— eachtime oneoftheMerlin
entitiesopts in, it constitutesaseparate
agreementbetween— from aneconomicpointof
view, betweenthatentity thatoptedin and
Pandora?

THE WITNESS: I think of it asjustone
agreementbecauseeveryonewho optsin is opting in
to exactlythe sameterms,so I think it is — for
me, it is moreproperto sayoneagreementthat
affectslet'ssayup to five percentofthemarket.

JUDGESTRICKLFR; But I understandthe
marketis adifferentissue.

THE WITNESS: Right.
JUDGESTRICKLER: I ampurposely

holdingthatasideandaskingthequestion,
Soyou lookedatabout60 agreements

andthe servicesin thatregardlookedat

approximately29 agreements;is thatright?
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variationsasidefor amoment— I don'tmeanto
minimizethe importanceof it, butjust leaveit
asideandleavethemarketshareasidethat'

representedby theseagreements— again,not
intendingto minimizethe importanceof that,what
import, if any,do youput on the fact thatyou
lookedat 60 agreementsversusthe factthatthe
serviceslookedat29 agreements?

THE WITNESS: It's not — I do think
the 60 aresubstantiallymoreinformativethan29,
but it's notjustby countingcontracts.

JUDGESTRICKLER: That'smy point.
That'swhy I washoldingtheotherthingsaside.

So I hold themconstant,ifyou will. Just— so
if I understandcorrectly,it's not themerefact
thatyou lookedat 60 andthey lookedat 29, it'

the informationyou cangleanfrom theagreements
thatmakesthemrelevantif the 60 were less
informativethanthe29. And I'm not sayingthat'

your testimony. But if the 60 wereless
informativethanthe29, thenthe 29 wouldbemore
pertinentto settingtherate,if thatwerethe
case?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I agree. I agree
with that. And, for me, it's — there'svariation
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1 THE WITNESS: Yes. But I think that is
2 correct,but it's importantfor me to seewhatkind
3 ofvariationthereis in theagreements,themore
4 thereis variation,themoreinformationyou get
5 abouthowdifferentcircumstancesmightaffectthe
6 agreement,so I think you'egoingto see— if you
7 look at the indie agreements,you arenotgoingto
8 seethekind ofvariationyou'dseewhenyou look
9 at all the interactiveagreements.

10 JUDGESTRICKLER Couldthatbebecause
11 the indiesaremorein thenatureofprice-takers?
12 THE WITNESS: Yes.
13 JUDGESTRICKLFR: And themajorshave
14 sufficientmarketpowerto notbemere
15 price-takers?
16 THE WITNESS: I think that is partof
17 it, yes. There'smore— both— I think both
18 sideshavesomepowerbut I think — asI'e
19 expressedin otherways,themajorsdo have
20 substantialbargainingpowerandthatputsthemin
21 a differentposition,butthe fact is thatwhenI
22 lookedattheroughly60 dealsthathadper-play
23 rates,I sawasignificantvariationso the
24 bargainsaregoingon thereweresomewhatdistinct.
25 JUDGESTRICKLER: Leavingthe

1 in the 60 wasimportantandalsothe factthat
2 their — that the shadoweffectwasless
3 substantialbecausetheywereinteractiveandnot
4 noninteractiveagreements.
5 JUDGESTRICKLER: Thankyou.
6 BY MR. POMERANTZ:
7 Q. All right. So let'sturn to thenext
8 slide,which is thesteeringprovision.
9 A. (Witnesscomplies.)

10 Q. And if you coulddiscussfirst the
11 first two bulletpointsandwhatyourviewsare
12 aboutthesteeringprovision?
13 A. Well, the first — first point is that
14 one,I think that'sbeenmadebeforeby others,but
15 if Pandoralias madeapromiseto steerin favorof
16 Merlin you can'tdo thatwith respectto all of the
17 otherrecordcompaniesbecausethetotalvolumeof
18 salesis ahundredpercent. If you aresteering
19 againsteveryonethenyou havemorethanahundred
20 percent. So it's really anarithmeticpoint, but I
21 think it's an importantpoint.
22 Thesecond— thesecondpoint is that
23 thestatutorylicenseis not goingto havea
24 steeringcomponentto it. So it's a little hard
25 for meto knowexactlywhatimplicationsyou'e
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going to drawf'rom from steering,irom thepromise
ofsteering. Becauseyou can't— you'enotgoing
to seeit. ultimately, in thestatutorylicenseand
ultimatelybargainsaregoingto bebargainsthat
aremadearoundthepresenceofthestatutory
agreement.

Q. Now, ProfessorShapirohastestified
thatthethreatofsteering,alone,would leadto
lowerratesfrom recordcompanies.

What'syourview of thatopinion?
A. I — I don'tthink it's likely to

happenbecauseI don'tthink thethreatis — is a
crediblethreatwould be thetermwe usein
economics,andthereasonis — thereasonis that,
first ofall, therecordcompanies,asI havesaid
anumberoftimesbefore,do havesubstantial
bargainingpowerandtheyhaveresponsesto the
threatthattakesawayits credibility. In the
ratherstrongversion,theycould— theycould
look to othersourcesof listenersandsaywe'e
goingto considernotusingyourservice,but they
don'thaveto go that far. Theycouldsaywe'e
notgoingto — to featureall ofthesameartists„

maybewe'l takesomeofour top artistsoff our
offerings,andwejust— we canvarywhatwe do
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the independentsunableto exercisethatthreat?
THE WITNESS: Well, youknow, thereare

somanyindies,so it's hardto say. But I assume,

typically, they'eonly goingto havea fewartists
thathavereally thenamerecognitionandthepower
to makea difference. So,youknow, threateningto
remove,say,yourtop artistif you'eoneof the
major indiesmaynothavethesame— it maynotbe
ascrediblebecausewithoutthatartistyou maynot
sellmanyrecords— I mean— sorry— manysongs
at alL

JUDGESTRICKLER: So if therecord
companyindustrywasmoreatomistic,thethreatof
steeringwouldbemorecredible,butbecauseit'

not thatatomisticto havemarketsharesthatshow
some— the levelofconcentrationthatexists,it
makesthe ability of themajorsto rebutthe
threat,if youwill, morelikely to besuccessful?

THE WITNESS: I think that'strue. You
know,we'ein aworld that is very far atomistic.
That'stheworld we'ebeenin for a longtime and
I think thatdoesaffectthepointsI'emade. So

yes,I agree. Highly atomistic. I canimagine
steeringhavingabiggerimpact. I mean,that'sa
harderworld for meto imaginebecauseI havebeen
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1 for you„basically,asa serviceif you think
2 you'egoingto threatenus.
3 And so I think the fact thattheydo
4 havethatkind ofbargainingpoweris really going
5 to makeathreatnonviable,noneffective.And I
6 haven'tseenanexampleofarealthreat. The
7 steeringthatweseein iHeartaspartofthe
8 negotiation,it wasmoreofacarrotthanastick
9 andthatI understand.I do understandthat

10 steeringcanhavean impact. We discussedthatat
11 somelength,but I don'tthink it', alone,a
12 crediblethreat. So I don'tthink youwould see
13 everyonenegotiatinganagreementto steeringin
14 their contracts.
15 JUDGESTRICKLER: Professor,do you
16 think thatthesmallerindependentshavethatsame
17 bargainingpowerto makethe — to respondto the
18 threatofsteering,asyoujust describedit?
19 THE WITNESS: No, theywouldn'thave.
20 Theywouldn'thavequite thesamebargainingpower,
21 that'squite right. I mean,I think it's more
22 likely if you'egoingto seesteeringat all, it
23 wouldbewith someofthesmallerplayers.
24 JUDGESTRICKLER: Whatdo the
25 independentslack thatthemajorshavethatmakes

1 in theworld ofseeingthreeor four moremajor
2 companieshavingaprettybig impact.
3 JUDGESTRICKLER: Thankyou.
4 BY MR. POMERANTZ:
5 Q. All right. Let'sgo to the lasttopic
6 thatyou havesaidyouwantedto addressthis
7 morning. It's on Slide 17. And you saidyou
8 wanteda response— to respondto two different
9 critiquesthatyou'eseenandreadaboutofyour

10 interactivityadjustments.The first oneyou
11 describeassubscriptionversusadsupported.And
12 we'eheardtestimonyfrom someoftheother
13 economistswho havetestifiedthat it's improperto
14 look atsubscriptionpricesfor calculatingan
15 interactivityadjustmentbecauseit ignoresthe
16 predominantlyad-supportedmodelofnoninteractive
17 services.
18 What'syour responseto this criticism?
19 MR. JOSEPH: Your Honor, I objectto
20 theselines— thewitnessfully addressedthesein
21 his directappearance.In fact, thatwasthe
22 appropriatetime to do so,at transcript1831 to
23 32, andthesecondsubjectwas2026to 2034. He
24 hadanopportunityto respondto therebuttalsin
25 his directandthatwsstheschemethattheparties
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agreedto.
MR. POMERANTZ: Your Honor,I actually

do agreethatto someextentthis testimonytoday
shouldbesomewhatlimited becauseofthe fact that
hewasherefor a longtime the lasttime. That
beingsaid,thisparticularpoint hedid addressin
his rebuttalandthere'sbeena lot of testimony
betweenwhenhewasherethe lasttime andtoday,
andI justwantedto give him anopportunityto
briefly respondto whattheotherexpertshave
said,whichI thuik is appropriatein therebuttal
phaseof the case.

MR. JOSEPH: Your Honor,justone last
point. To theextentheaddressedit in his
rebuttal,it wasnotproperin therebuttalbecause
in thedirecttestimonyof theexpertstheydidn'

criticizehismodelsfor the interactiveservice.
Theyweretalkingaboutthepast. So it was
improperrebuttaltestimonyto beginwith.

MR. POMEEtANTZ: That'snot true,andI
canexplainto youwhy.

CHIEFJUDGEBARNETT: No.
I'm goingto allow it. It'sjustsowe

haveall ofournotesin oneplaceon this topic.
Thankyou, Mr. Pomerantz.
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areoff basebecausethey'emixing — they'e
mixing ad-supportedandsubscriptionservices.
They'emixing differentmodels. So theydon'tget
— theydon'tform the real issueI wantedwhich is

how to separateout theditferentfunctionalities
in the two typesofservices.

Q. All right. And thenthesecond
criticismthatwasraisedby someoftheeconomists
wasthatyou haveassumedthattheratio between
subscriptionpricesandroyalty rateswould be the
samefor noninteractiveservicesas interactive
services,andtheysaythatthatassumptionis
unreasonable.

How do you respondto that?
A. That is theassumptionI spelledout,

andI do think it's reasonableandI cangiveyou a
briefdescriptionofwhy I think it's reasonable.
Thiswould beslightly technical,butI'l do my
best.

So,basically,in theworld we'e
talking about,thekey input to producingmusicis

obviouslyrecordedfor musicservices,recorded
musicitself. Sowehavethatkey inputandthat
key input drivestheroyalty rates. All theother
inputsarerelativelymodestin termsofthe
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1 BY MR. POMERANTZ:
2 Q. Letmejustrestatethequestion,then.
3 We'eheardtestimonyfrom someof the
4 othereconomistsin thismatterthat it's improper
5 to look atsubscriptionpricesfor calculatingan
6 interactivityadjustmentbecauseit ignoresthe
7 predominantlyad-supportedmodelofnoninteractive
8 services.
9 What'syour responseto thatcriticism?

10 A. My responseis that it's — my goalwas
11 to try to getascleanacalculationthataccounted
12 for thedifferentfunctionalitybetween
13 subscription— betweeninteractiveand
14 noninteractiveservices.And so looking, for
15 example,at subscriptionsaloneallowsme to do
16 that. Looking atad-supportedservicesseparately,
17 which I alsodid, gavemea relativelyclean
18 exercise,butnotascleanbecausethead-supported
19 servicesdo — bebveeninteractiveand
20 noninteractivedo dependon differentbusiness
21 models,andthatwould affectthe resultsto some
22 extent.
23 But calculationsthatcoverall the
24 revenueslike the— oneof thecalculationsthat
25 ProfessorLichtmanput forward lastweek,to me,

1 variablecosts. Theremaybevery significant
2 flxed costs. The investments,for example,that
3 Pandoramakesarevery significant,but the actual
4 incrementalcostsarenotveryhigh.
5 And„ furthermore,there'snot likely to
6 bemuchsubstitutionbetweenthekey input„which
7 is themusic— recordedmusicandtheotherinputs
8 thatthey'enotveryhighto startwith, andI
9 don'tthink there'smuchsubstitution. So if

10 you — if you takethatworld andthenyou addto
11 it thefactthatdownstream,at leastasI
12 testifiedandothershaveaswell, there'
13 substantialcompetitionamongall thedifferent
14 kindsofalternativeretail services,both
15 interactiveandnoninteractive,whichmakesthe
16 elasticityofdemandquitehigh andlikely, in my
17 view, givenconvergence,makestheelasticityof
18 demandfor interactiveservicesquite similar to
19 theelasticityfor demandfor noninteractive
20 services.
21 Now, if you takeeachofthecomponents
22 I havetalkedabout,the factthatmusicis thekey
23 input, there'svery little substitutability,and
24 thedownstreamelasticityofdemandsarerelatively
25 similar for both interactiveandnoninteractive
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services.
You canactuallytaketheHicks

Marshallrelationshipthatabunchoftheexperts
havetalkedaboutthatexplainshowyou getderived
demandandyou cansimplify it. And theway I
would simplify it intuitively wouldbeto saylet'
look downstreamat theso-calledLernercondition,
whichProfessorShapirohasreferredto a numberof
timesandotherexpertshaveaswell, andthe
Lernerconditionsaysthatthemarkupofpriceover
costis inverselyrelatedto theelasticityof
demandfor thatparticularproduct.

So themarkupovercostis themarkup
overbasicallyroyalty becausetheroyalty is the
main input in themusic. And if theelasticity
demandsarethe same,thenit's veryeasyto seeif
youjust look attheLernerconditionsthatthe
relationshipbetweentheroyaltieswill be — the
ratio ofthepriceoftheroyaltywill bethesame
for both interactiveandnoninteractiveservices.
It follows directly by looking attwo diferent
Lernerconditions,onefor interactiveandone for
noninteractiveservices.Thesubscriptionprice
for the interactiveis twice thesubscriptionprice
for thenoninteractive.If you'egoingto have
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MR. RICH: Cross-examination,Your
Honor?

CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Yes. Let'

begin. We mighthaveto breakit with our break,
but...

MR. RICH: This canbe in opensession,
Your Honor. I think theentireexaminationcaube
in opensession.

CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Outstanding.
CROSS-EXAMINATIONBY COUNSELFOR

PANDORA
BY MR. RICH:

Q. Goodmorning,ProfessorRubinfeld.
A. Goodmorning.
Q. I would like to startby comingbackto

the colloquyyouhadwith JudgeStrickleraboutthe
relativenumbersofcontractsthathavebeendrawn
&om by thepartiesin craftingtheirbenchmarks.

Do you rememberthatdiscussion?
A. Yes.

Q. I believeyou testified,to thebestof
your recollection,thatyou drew&om about60
agreementsin framingyour interactiveservices
benchmark?

A. Yes.

Q. If youwouldtakethe first of thetwo
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Lernerconditionsto beequal,theroyaltyhasto
betwice ashigh.

So theassumptionI madeis an
assumption,but it's anassumptionthat, to me,
intuitively makessensebecauseit fits the
conditionsthatwe learnedaboutit thatdescribe
thenatureofcompetitionin this industry.

MR. POMEI4&KZ: Your Honor,I haveno
furtherquestionsatthis time.

CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Thankyou.
MR. JOSEPH: I'm sorry. Your Honor, at

the risk oftrying theCourt'spatience,I moveto
strikethat lastansweron thegroundit goesfar
beyonda simpleresponseinto whatpurportsto
be — probablyis — purportsto beananalysis. I
don'tknowhowwe getthat in andgetno chanceto
respond.

MR. POMERANTZ: Your Honor,thatwas
directly responsiveto their rebuttalto Professor
Rubinfeldandall the factshetestifiedto arein
therecordalready.

CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: I think it was
directly responsible— or responsive,Mr. Joseph.
Sowe'l not strike it. Overruled.

MR POMERANTZ: Thankyou, Your Honor.

1

2
3

4
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
21

22
23
24
25

bindersthatMr. Pomerantzprovidedyou, Mr.
RubinfeldDirectExhibit VolumeI, sndturn to Tab
20.

A. (Witnesscomplies.)
Q. I believeit's labeledExhibit 16-A to

yourwrittendirecttestimony.
Do youseethat?

A. Yes.
Q. Canyoudescribewhat'ssetforth on

thatexhibit?
I don'tmeannumerically,but

functionallywhatis thatexhibitdoing?
A. This comes— this comesfrom, I think,

my initial report,andI think I wouldwantto look
at the reportto put it in context. It describesa
rangeofadjustedinteractivebenchmarkrates. I
don'trecallthe full context. If youneedmoreI
needto go backandlook at my report.

Q. Well, I'm not going to askyou, at this
latedate,to re&eshyourselfaboutyour report,
but is it accuratethattliis setsforth the
entitiesandlicenseagreements&om whichyou drew
datathatyoubasedyour interactiverate
calculationson?

A. I believethat'scorrect.
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Q. Now, if you look at thenextto last
column,which is labeled"AdjustedMinimum Per-Play
Rate,"do you seethat?

A. Yes.
Q. Am I correct that itis fromthedata

listed in thatcolmnnthatyou derivedyour
per-playrate from which your rateproposalderives
in this case?

A. I think that'slikely correct,but I
needto go backandlook at my reportto becertain
of that. Give mejust aminute.

Q. Sure.
A. I'm justhavingtrouble.
Q. I'm advisedthatthe referencemaybe

at Paragraph227 ofyour written directtestimony.
A. Okay. Thankyou.

Yeah. The reasonI washesitatingis
becausetheparagraphyou referredme to does
describeExhibit 16 andI — you showedme 16-A and
I just don't recallwhy there'sa 16-A and-
ratherthan 16. I don'thaveany — so theremay
havebeena distinction. I just don'trecallwhat
mademerefer to 16 in thetext andthis is 16-A.
I just don'trememberthe difference.

Q. I'm not surewe cansolvethatduring
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forms the basisfor your recommendationsto these
judges,you drewdatafrom 26, not 60 interactive
serviceagreements,correct?

A. I amnot — I gatheryourpoint, just
not a hundredpercentsurethis is the exactright
number,but — becauseI'm not sure— I just don'

recallwhy 16-A is different than 16, but if your
generalpoint is thatnot all of the contractshave
minimumplay rates,that'scorrect.

Q. Thatwasn'tthe generalpoint. I ask

you simply to answermy question—
A. Well, I told you—

Q. — vwhetheryou — hold on. Whetheryou
cancite anythingin any ofyour testimony,anyof
your exhibitsthatwould refutethe proposition
that in calculatingthe reconunendedper-playrates
hereyou relied on exactly26 interactiveservice
agreements.That'scorrect,isn't it?

That'sa "yes" or "no."

A. No. I told you I'm not certainthat
16-A ratherthan 16 reflectsthe correctnumber. I

certainlyknow thatthenumberis lessthana full
numberof contractsI lookedat, but I—

Q. Do you evenknow if you haveanExhibit
16 in your testimony,sir?
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this colloquy, but let measkyou this: Focusing
on thatnextto lastcolumnandpresumingfor
purposesof this examinationthat the datadepicted
in thatcolumnarethe sourcefor the rateproposal
youmakerespectingper-playratesasdepictedat
Paragraph227 and following the directexamination,
howmanydatapointsappearin thatcolmnn?

A. Which column?

Q. Thenextto lastcolumnin Exhibit
16-A. How manydatapointsdid you draw from in
thatnextto the lastcolumn?

A. It's hardto—

Q. I count26.
A. Yeah. I wasgoing to sayit's hardto

countexactly. I would sayjustunder30. So if
you tell me it's 26, that could be right.

Q. So not 60, correct?
A. Well„ therewereoriginally — there

arenot 60 in thatcolumn. Thereareoriginally
about80 contracts,but theywerenot — not all of
themhadminimumper-playrates. Many of themhad
otherpartsof the contract,but not minimum
per-playrates.

Q. So the recordis clear,in deriving
whatyou call your minimumper-playratesthat
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A. I told you I don't recall. I don'

haveany recollectionthat I — recollectionat all
asto why this is 16-A.

Q. Now„ in Paragraph3 ofyourwritten
rebuttaltestimonyyou stateasto the
iHeart-WarnerandMerlin-Pandoraagreementsthat,
quote,"neitheris informative,"unquote.

Do you recallthattestimony?
A. And wheredid you say,sir?
Q. Paragraph3 ofyourwritten rebuttal

testimony.
A. Let me dig thatout.

Yes.

Q. And, again,atParagraph74 of that
testimonyyou statethatyou find that the
Pandora-Merlindeal,quote,"to beuninformativeas
abenchmarkfor this proceeding,"unquote;is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. You actuallydon'tbelievethatto be
the case,do you?

A. You will haveto explain.
Q. You actuallybelievethatthejudge

shouldconsiderthesebenclunarks,don'tyou?
A. No, I believe— well, onecould
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considerall the evidence,but I believethe right
way — thebestway to go at — informing the issue
at handis to focuson the interactiveagreements
theway I havedescribed.

Q. Do you recall atyour deposition
indicatingthatyou thoughtit wasanunfortunate
choiceofwordson your part to call these
uninformative?

A. I mayhavesaidthat,yes.

Q. Do you havea differentview today?
A. Well, vve'vehad— the reasonI — I

probablysaidthatwould be — wasbecausewe had
discussionabouttheseagreementsandthe
agreementsarepartof thepicture,andI think
it's reasonableto taketheminto account. So
maybeuninformedofsayingwe shouldliterally
disregardthemmaybe too stronga statement.

Q, You alsocharacterizethe
Merlin-Pandora,andiHeart-Warneragreementsas,

quote,"atypical„" unquote„don'tyou againin
Paragraph3?

A. Yes,
Q. For reasonswe'l discussfurther; but

here,again,youwouldn'turge thejudgesto

totally disregardthemon the basisofwhatyou
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Q. But thatdescriptionof the licenseas

a trial licenseis anotheronethatyou no longer
standby; isn't thattme?

A. I — it soundslike you'erecalling
somethingI saidon a deposition,which I don'

actuallyrecall.

Q. Do you believesitting heretodaythat
theMerlin licensewasaccuratelydescribedasa

trial license?
A. Well. it's an agreementthatwas

actuallyreachedandput in place,but I — I

believeat the time I wrote this I viewedit as a

trial licensebecauseI believethat therewas-
the thoughtwasthat if the licensewassuccessful
for bothpartiesit would continuebeyondthe
two-yearperiod.

Q. Doesthatmakeit distinguishablefrom
almostanyother licensein which parties,
dependingon the successor lackof successof a

commercialagreement,will decidewhetherto cany
forward or continueor extendthat agreement?

A. I think everylicensehasto be treated
separately.

Q. And with respectto its two-yearterm,

pleaseremindthejudgesof the averagedurationof

6319

1

2

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
21

22
23

24
25

termtheir atypicalnature,would you?
A. I think they shouldbe given, let'

say,very little weight,notjustbecausethey'e
atypical,but becauseof the reasonsI havestated
earliertodayandearlierin my report. Thereare
specificreasons.The fact thatthey'enegotiated
in the shadowofthecunenthearingaswell as
the — if we'etalking aboutMerlin andthe shadow
of the Pureplayrates.

Q. In Paragraph71 ofyourwritten
rebuttaltestimony,turn to that,please.

A. (Witnesscomplies.)
CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: This is the

restrictedmaterial?
MR. RICH: I think what I amciting—

thankyou, Your Honor— will not impingeon
restrictedstatus.

THE WITNESS: I'm there.
BY MR. RICH:

Q. You furthercriticize the Merlin
agreementasquote,"a two-yeartrial license,"
unquote,that is, quote,"in sharpcontrastto the
statutorylicenseshve-yearterm," unquote.

Do you seethat?
A. Yes.
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the interactiveservicesagreementsin which you
rely for benclunarking?

A. I don'tknow the exactaverage,but
they'ein the sameballpark.

JUDGESTRICKLER: Which sameballpark
is that?

THE WITNESS: Yeah,sameballpark,
throughtypically in the two-yearrange.

BY MR. RICH:

Q. Now, you'l recall that in yom written
direct testimonyyou derivedfrom the Web III
remanddeterminationfour economicteststo
evaluatepotentialbenchmarks.

Do you recall that?
A. Yes.

Q. And atPage14 ofyourwritten rebuttal
testimonyyou assertin the captionto the
succeedingsectionthatthe Merlin agreementquote,
"fails thejudges'omparabilitytest,"unquote„
correct?

A. Whereareyou, sir?

Q. Page14 ofyourwritten rebuttal
testimony.

CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Do you havea

paragraphnumber?
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1 THE WITNESS: It's aheading,Your
2 Honor.
3 MR. RICH: It's a headingin SectionB,
4 Your Honor.
5 CHIEF JUDGEBARNETT: Oh, thankyou.
6 THE WITNESS: Heading1 underSection
7 B, Your Honor.
8 BY MR. RICH:
9 Q. ThePandora-Merlinagreementfails the

10 judges'omparabilitytestsndis an inappropriate
11 benchmark."
12 Did I readthatcorrectly?
13 A. You did.
14 Q. Now, let'sexaminethatcontention
15 againstyour chosenfour economictests. If we
16 couldputup on thescreenthetextofParagraph
17 122 fromyourwritten directtestimony,andI'l
18 representto you andto thejudgesthatthat'san
19 actualtranscriptionjustblownup for convenience
20 ofthetextofyour four economictests.
21 Do you recognizethose,sir'?

22 MR. RICK Why don'twehandthe
23 witnessapaperversionofthis if it will be
24 easier.
25 THE WITNESS: I do recognizeit if that
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Webcastingservicesandthe sellersarerecord
companies;"is thatcorrect?

A. Yes.

Q. You would agreethattheMerlin deal

wasenteredinto betweenastatutoryWebcasting
servicesndrecordcompanies,correct?

A. I wouldagreewith that.

Q. So it doesn'tflunk thesecondtest
either,doesit?

A. It doesnot, but the— I wasnot
askingthe questionthewayyou describedit is

whetheroneflunks atestor not. Thequestionis

howrelevantthetestis in forming theultimate
questionasto whethersomethingis a good
benchmarkSo,certainly,B set— bothparties
satisfiedB. A, I would sayI haveissueswith for
reasonsI described.

Q, Okay. Let'skeepgoing. Three— now,
C is thestatutorylicensetest,correct?Meaning
thatthetransactionoccurredin ahypothetical
marketplacein whichthereis no statutorylicense,
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Andyou agreethatall the license
agreementsthatarebeforethejudgesfor
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1 helps.
2 BY MR. RICH:
3 Q. Okay. Let'sgo throughtheseoneby
4 one. Willing buyerandwilling sellertest. You
5 would agree,wouldn'tyou, thattheMerlin-Pandora
6 agreementis theproductofnegotiationsbetweena
7 willing buyerandwilling seller?
8 A. Yes. My only concernwouldbewhether
9 thehypotheticalmarketplaceis affectedby the

10 shadowoftheexistingagreements.
11 Q. Whichyougetto in PartC, correct?
12 A. I think the shadowaflectsthenumber
13 parts,notjustPartC.

14 Q. You wouldn'tdisputethis agreementwas
15 enteredinto betweenawilling buyerandawilling
16 seller,correct?
17 A. That'scorrect.
18 Q. Okay. So it doesn'tflunk the first
19 test,right?
20 A. No, I don'tthink it flunks thetest.
21 Q. Okay. Number2 is samepartiestest,
22 do you seethat?
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. Whichyou defineasquote,"the buyers
25 in this hypotheticalmarketplacearethestatutory
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considerationareaffectedto somedegreeby the
shadowofthestatutorylicense,correct?

A. Yes,but thatdegreevaries
substantially.

Q. Hold on.
And I wasgoing to say,nonetheless,

youbelievethattheMerlin dealwasdirectly
influencedby thepresenceofthestatutorylicense
to theextentthat it shouldbegivenreduced
weightasabenchmark,correct?

A. Well, notjustthestatutorylicense,
butthe— with Pandora-Merlin,thepresenceofthe
Pureplayagreement.

Q. And I'l acceptthatasfalling within
theambit for this purposeof the statutory
license. Thankyou.

And that'salsoasubjectwe'l turn
to.

Now, let's look atthe lasttest,same
rights test,whichyou defineasquote,"the

productsoldconsistsofablanketlicensefor the
recordcompanies'ompleterepertoireofsound
recordingsto beusedin compliancewith theDMCA
requirements,"unquote,correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. And you would agreethattheMerlin
agreement,with the adjustinentsproposedby
ProfessorShapirofor skipsandpre-1972
recordings,meetsthis criterion, correct'?

A. Yes. There'sasmall issueabout
skips,but I don'tthink it's significant. I think
generallythis wouldbecorrect.

Q. So evengiving a checkminusto you'e
a,with the reservationsandassumingit doesn'
doublecountyour concernsin C, youwould agree
with methatweget two checks,onecheckminus,
andoneX in stackingup againstyour four economic
testsofthePandora-Merlinagreement,correct?

A. This is not asystemI wouldusefor
evaluatingthe benchmarks.I wouldn'tdo thisby
havingchecksandcheckminuses.

Q. You standby yoursummarythatthe
Pandora-Merlinagreementfails the

judges'omparabilitytestaccordingto yourown
comparabilitycriteria, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Turningbackto thestatute,the
shadowofthestatutorylicense,you cite asthe
mostfundamentalreasontheMerlin agreementis an
inappropriatebenchmark.It's havingbeen,quote,

1 saybecauseI canimaginesomeconditionsunder
2 whichtheymight wantto go somewhatabovethe
3 Pureplayrate,but I would saythatwould surprise
4 me if it did.
5 Q. Yeah.
6 And thatMerlin, accordingly,would
7 havebeenunsuccessfulhadit attemptedto
8 negotiatesuchrates,meaningabovePureplayin all
9 likelihood, correct?

10 A. I — I would saythat'sgenerallytrue,
11 but thequalifier I haveis thatwhenthe
12 negotiationsincludemanydimensions,theremaybe
13 certainfeaturesthathavevalueto you thatare
14 not reflectedsimplyonthePureplayrateand
15 then— so thenwe couldget into aquestionasto
16 how to valuethoseadditionalfeatures.And from
17 thepointofview of, say,Merlin, it maybethose
18 featuresgive it greatervaluethantheywouldget
19 underthePureplayrate.
20 Q. But howdoes— howdoesyourcriticism
21 thatthePandora-Merlinagreementis — shouldbe
22 discountedor givenreducedweightonaccountof
23 thedirect influenceofthePureplayrates?How
24 doesthatexplainwhyMerlin wouldhaveagreedto
25 ratesbelowthePureplayratesif, asyou
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"directly influencedby thePureplayrates,"
unquote. That'sfrom yourwrittendirecttestimony
ofParagraph64; is thatcorrect?

JUDGEFEDER: Written rebuttal.
BY MR. RICH:

Q. Written rebuttaltestimony.
Did I misspeak?

A. Yeah,I haveit. That is correct.

Q. And yougo on to sayin this regard
thatbecausePandorahadtheoptionto electthe,
quote„"belowmarket,"unquotePureplayrates,
Merlin wasdeprivedofthe ability to negotiatea
marketrate,"correct,sameparagraph?

A. Yes. You just left out theellipses
sayingthatthePureplayratesarenot
precedential;but, otherwise,that'scorrect.

Q. Thankyou.
And by belowmarketyoumeantbelowthe

statutoryWeb III rates;is thatcorrect?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. So I takeit thatyourview is

thatPandorawouldneverenterinto adirect
licenseagreementabovethePureplayratesduring
thetermofthePureplayagreement,right?

A. I wouldn'tquite saynever,but I would

1 hypothesize,thePureplayratesare,quote,"below
2 marketrates"?
3 A. I'm notconvincedthatMerlin has
4 agreedto ratesthatarebelowthePureplayrates
5 from theirpointofview. My analysissuggests
6 thatthat'snot true.
7 Q. And whereis thatanalysissetforth in
8 anyofyourwritten testimonyto demonstratethat
9 Merlin agreedto ratesthatwerenotbelowthe

10 Pureplayrates?
11 A. Well, I'e readthetestimonyin the
12 recordby variousexpertsthatsuggestedthatthe
13 ratewasbelowthePureplayrate,andI did not
14 find thatconvincing. EverythingI readis
15 entirelyconsistentwith theratesbeingat or — I
16 wouldsayatthePureplayrates.
17 Q. Andwhatis this everythingthatyou'e
18 readthat indicatesthattheratesareat or above
19 thePureplayrates?
20 A. Well, for example,someofthis goes
21 backfurtherin time, but I think we'egoingto
22 hearfrom Mr. Lextoncomingup soon. I'e readhis
23 written testimony,andthatwasconsistentwith the
24 ratesbeingat thePureplayrates. He describeda
25 lot oftheelementsof thePandora-Merlindealfrom
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Merlin's perspectiveandthoseitems,ashe
describes,or will describeit &om Merlin's point
ofviewhassignificantvalue.

Q. Anything elsethatyou canrecallother
thanwhatyouunderstandthepurportofMr.
Lexton'stestimonyto be?

A. Well, I have— I'e readtestimony
from expertsfor Pandoradescribingtheir
perspective,for example,Dr. Shapiro. I don'

read— I can'trecalloff the top ofmy headall
the specificsofthe testimonythatI'eheaid-
thatI read,sorry,but I rememberDr. Shapiro
talking aboutthis issueaswell.

Q. And do you recallDr. Shapiro
testifyingto theeffectthatthepropereconomic
interpretationof theMerlin-Pandoradealis that
it calls for effectiveratesator abovePureplay?

A. Not specifically,but thatwouldnot
surpriseme,but I — I mean,maybeI'm confusing
it. I thoughtyou— youwereaskingmewhetheror
not I hadfound— whatI hadseenthatsuggests
thattherateswereat thePureplayrate,andI
thoughtI explained— I'e alreadyexplainedthat
it's conceivablethe ratescouldgo so muchhigher
fi om thepoint ofviewoftheseparties. SoI'm
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issueI did not find anyanalysis— I haveseen
compelling.

Q. Did you do anyofyour own analysisof
theeconomicsof theMerlin-Pandoradeal;yesor
no?

A. Sure,butby analysis,I mean,I
evaluatedthework thatothershavedone. If by
analysis,youmeandid I do my own calculations—

Q. Yes.
A. — onanumberof theseelements?

Q. Yes.
A. Many oftheseelementsarevery

difficult to analyzenumerically. That'swhy
there's— I can— that'swhy there'ssome
differenceofopinion.

Q. So is theanswerno, you did notdo
suchananalysis?

A. No, I don'tthink that'sa fair
characterization.To me,analysismeanslooking at
an issueascarefully asyou canwith the
informationyou have. It doesn'tmeanit's limited
to doingcalculations.

JUDGESTRICKLER: Professor,if we
stickwith thePandora-Merlinagreementsowe have
astatedratefor the final yearof .14 with
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not sure—

Q. Sir, I wasn'taskingyouwhat'
conceivable.I wasaskingyou whatbasis,whether
fromyourown analysisor from anyofthetestimony
you'ereviewed,leadsyou to form aprofessional
opinionasaneconomistthat thebestandmost
properreadingoftheMerlin-Pandoradealis that
it callsfor ratesator abovethePureplayrates?

A. Calls for rates. I'm not surewhatyou
mean. I'm sayingthatwhenI readthetestimony
thatI'e citedI foundthe testimonythat
suggestedthattherateswerebelowthethree
per-playratesnotto becompellingandnotjust
beyondwhatI justtoldyou. I can'tgiveyou
specificcitesoff the top ofmy head. This issue
hascomeup, I think, severaltimesduring the
proceeding.

Q. Did you do anycalculationsyourselfof
thetermsofthePandora-Merlindealto supportthe
conclusionthatall theotheranalysesdone,for
example,by ProfessorShapirois, quote,
"unconvincing"asto wherethoseratesreally
settleat?

A. I didn'tsayall ofProfessorShapiro's
analysesareunconvincing. I justsaidon this

1 steering,it could go down to .11. Now, asI
2 understandit, thequestionsandanswersthathave
3 beengoingbackandforth for nowdealwith whether
4 or not theactualeffectiverate,asopposedto
5 thatheadlinerate,is below, at, or perhapseven
6 abovethePureplayrate.
7 To determinethat,don'tyouneedto
8 know— it seemsthatwasa— andcorrectme if
9 I'm wrong,weneedto knowthevalue,marketvalue

10 oftheotheritemswithin thePandora-Merlin
11 agreementwhichyou itemizedon oneofyourslides,
12 correct?
13 THE WITNESS: Yes.
14 JUDGESTRICKLER: Is thereanyreason
15 to believe-is thereanyreasonto assumethat
16 bothPandoraandMerlin hadthesame— assigned
17 thesamevalueto thoseotheritemsindividually or
18 in sum?
19 THE WITNESS: I would notbe
20 comfortablemakingthatassumption.That'soneof
21 thereasonsit's difficult to evaluatethevalueof
22 theseitems.
23 JUDGESTRICKLER: You saidit'

24 variationsamongthepartiesin thesetransactions
25 with regardto valuewhich is whyyouwantto look
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